HOUSE FI NANCE COW TTEE
March 22, 2006
2:46 p. m

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Chenault called the House Finance Comm ttee neeting
to order at 2:46:43 PM

MENMBERS PRESENT

Representative M ke Chenault, Co-Chair
Representative Kevin Meyer, Co-Chair
Representative Bill Stoltze, Vice-Chair
Representati ve Ri chard Foster
Representati ve M ke Hawker
Representative Ji m Hol m
Representati ve Reggi e Joul e
Representative Mke Kelly
Representative Beth Kerttul a
Representative Carl Moses
Representati ve Bruce Weyhrauch

MEMBERS ABSENT

None
ALSO PRESENT

Sharon Kelly, staff, Co-Chair  Chenaul t; Eddy Jeans,
Director, Education  Support Servi ces, Depar t ment of
Education and Early Developnent; Guy Bell, Assistant
Conmi ssioner, Ofice of the Comm ssioner, Departnment of
Labor and Workforce Devel opnent; Frank Richards, Statew de
Mai nt enance and Operations, Departnent of Transportation and
Public Facilities; Nancy Slagle, Director, D vision of
Adm ni strative Services, Departnent of Transportation and
Public Facilities;

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

SUMVARY

CSSB 232( FI N)
"An  Act maki ng  appropriations, suppl enent al
appropri ations, and capi tal appropri ations;

amending appropriations and funding sources;
maki ng appropriations to capitalize funds; and
providing for an effective date."

CSSB 232(FIN) was REPORTED out of Conmittee with a
"do pass" reconmendati on.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 1 03/22/06 2:46 P. M



HB 365 "An Act making appropriations for the operating
and | oan program expenses of state governnent, for
certain progranms, and to capitalize funds; making
appropriations under art. I X, sec. 17(c),
Constitution of the State of Al aska, from the
constitutional budget reserve fund; and providing
for an effective date."

HB 365 was heard and HELD in Conmittee for further
consideration. The following departnents were
anmended:

Department of Adm nistration

Depart ment of Environnental Conservation
Departnment of Education and Early Devel opnment
Departnment of Labor and Workforce Devel opnent
Mlitary and Veterans Affairs

Depart ment of Revenue

Department of Transportation and Public Facilities
Uni versity.

HB 366 "An Act making appropriations for the operating
and capital expenses of the state's integrated
conpr ehensi ve nmental health program and providing
for an effective date."

HB 366 was heard and HELD in Committee for further
consi der ati on.

#sb232

CS FOR SENATE BILL NO. 232(FIN
" An Act maki ng appropri ations, suppl enment al
appropriations, and capital appropriations; anending
appropriations and fundi ng sour ces; maki ng

appropriations to capitalize funds; and providing for
an effective date.™

Co- Chair Chenault MOVED to Adopt Anmendnent C, 24-GS2068\C. 2.

SHARON KELLY, STAFF, CO CHAIR CHENAULT, observed that
Amrendnent C would clarify action on previously adopted
Amendnent  #2. The anendnent makes clear that the funds
appropriated to the Cty of Kaktovik are for a capital
project and will be added to the | apse section.

Representative Stoltze WTHRDREW his objection. There being
NO OBJECTION, it was so ordered.

Co- Chair Chenaul t MOVED to ADOPT Amendnment D, 24-

GS2068\ C. 3, Bai | ey, 3/ 22/ 06. Representative Stoltze
OBJECTED

House Fi nance Conmmittee 2 03/22/06 2:46 P. M



Ms. Kelly explained that Amendnent D would add $1 thousand
in general funds for the purpose of beginning the intent
| anguage on page 7, line 4.

There being NO OBJECTIQON, it was so ordered.

Ms. Kelly spoke to the Amendnent #D. She noted the wording
change on line 4. The Departnent of Adm nistration needs a
smal | appropriation to begin the work. Language was inserted
to all ow general fund nonies to be spent.

Representative Stoltze WTHRDREW his objection. There being
NO OBJECTIQON, it was so ordered.

Representative Joule MOVED to ADOPT Amendnent E, which would
add $35,000 to the Council on Donestic Violence and Sexua
Assaul t.

Representative Stoltze OBJECTED

Representative Joule spoke to the anendnent, stating that
the funds would support the domestic violence and sexual
assault crisis center in Kotzebue. Last year, the center
received $350,000 in funding through the Department of
Heal th and Soci al Services. This year the center applied for
fundi ng through the Council on Donestic Violence and Sexual
Assault, but did not received funding for FY 06 operations.
He explained that the appropriation would reinburse funds
used to operate the shelter in the previous year so it could
conti nue.

Representative Kelly asked about the FY 07 plan.
Representative Joul e responded that it was in the budget for
$250 t housand.

Representative Kelly WTHDREW his OBJECTI ON. There being NO
OBJECTIQN, it was so ordered.

Representative Joule expressed his concern that certain
items were unfinished, specifically in the area of energy
issues that are wdespread in rural Alaska. He urged
di scussi on on the House Floor to address these issues.

2:52: 38 PM

Co- Chair Chenault acknow edged the inportance of energy and
comuni ty issues, which mght be addressed through nunici pal
assistance. He expressed his intention to come up wth a
plan to neet the needs of Alaskans, and noted that the bill
was a supplenental. He agreed that many departnents were in
need of funds.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 3 03/22/06 2:46 P. M



Representative Foster MOVED to report CSSB 232(FIN) out of
Conmittee with individual recomendations. There being NO
OBJECTION, it was so ordered.

CSSB 232(FIN) was REPORTED out of Committee with a "do pass”
recommendat i on.

2:55: 06 PM
#hb365
HOUSE BI LL NO. 365

"An Act making appropriations for the operating and
| oan program expenses of state governnent, for certain
progr ans, and to capitalize f unds; maki ng
appropriations under art. IX, sec. 17(c), Constitution
of the State of Al aska, from the constitutional budget
reserve fund; and providing for an effective date."

HOUSE BI LL NO._ 366

"An Act making appropriations for the operating and
capi tal expenses of t he state's i nt egrated
conprehensi ve nmental health program and providing for
an effective date."

Representative Kerttula MOVED to ADOPT Amendnment ADM N #1,
which would add $1.7 mllion to the Ofice of Public
Advocacy.

Co- Chair Chenault OBJECTED

Representative Kerttula noted that the amendnent would add
funds to the Governor’s original request. She enphasized the
inmportance of the agency in crimnal and civil conflict
cases. She noted that it would cost nore to defend these
cases wth private counsel. She enphasized that the agency
had worked with seniors and children, and that they had a
very high case | oad and not enough resources.

2:58: 06 PM

Co- Chair Chenault conceded that the departnment does a fine
j ob and acknow edged that they are under-funded based on his
di scussion wth the personnel. He queried how to deal wth
suppl enental s and hold agencies to the anmount specified [by
the legislature]. He expressed an unwi |l |lingness to accept an
amendnent stating a specific anbunt and stated that he woul d
not support the anmendnent.

Representative Kerttula recognized the problenms wth
suppl enentals and urged the Commttee to add additional
funding into the base to prevent future supplenentals.

Aroll call vote was taken on the notion.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 4 03/22/06 2:46 P. M



I N FAVOR: Kerttula, Mses, Joule
OPPCSED: Kelly, Stoltze, Wyhrauch, Foster, Hawker, Holm
Meyer, Chenaul t

The MOTI ON FAI LED (3-8).

Representative Kerttula MOVED to ADOPT Anendnment ADM N #2
add $1 million for the Public Defender Agency.

Co- Chair Meyer OBJECTED

Representative Kerttula noted that the agency is driven by
caseload wunder a constitutional provision guaranteeing
representation. She mmintained that excess casel oads
sonetinmes result in | ost cases and del ays. She al so observed
t hat attorneys often had to conplete their own
adm nistrative duties, resulting in inefficiency.

I N FAVOR: Kerttula, Mses, Joule
OPPCSED: Kelly, Stoltze, Wyhrauch, Foster, Hawker, Holm
Meyer, Chenaul t

The MOTI ON FAI LED (3-8).

Representative Kelly MOWED to ADOPT Anendnment DCCED #1,
whi ch woul d add $25 thousand for the Al aska State Community
Servi ces Conmm ssi on.

There being NO OBJECTIQON, it was so ordered.

Representative Kelly MOVED to ADOPT Amendnent DCCED #2 to
add $900 thousand to the Qualified Trade Association
Contract. Co-Chair Meyer OBJECTED.

Representative Kelly spoke to the anmendment, stating that
these funds would provide a grant to the Independent
Travel er Association. He explained that the independent
travel er market has not rebounded as well as other tourism
segnents, such as the cruise industry. The request was
reduced in the subcommttee and renoved from the capital
budget to be submitted as a one tine increnent in the
oper ati ng budget .

3: 05: 03 PM

Co-Chair Chenault asked if matching funds were involved.
Representative Kelly noted that the smaller organizations
felt that it would be difficult to neet a match requirenent.

Co- Chair Chenault thought that the vehicle rental tax was

originally intended to pronote travel in the state. He
suggested ot her departnments could also pronote tourism and

House Fi nance Conmmittee 5 03/22/06 2:46 P. M



stated his hesitance to support the anendnent while other
i nportant state issues go unfunded.

Representative Kelly maintained that, although they could
not dedicate funds, there was an inplied prom se that the
funds would go toward tourismw th a focus on such groups.

3:08: 03 PM

Representative Kerttula asked what would happen if the
anmendnent were not adopted. Representative Kelly noted that
he woul d | ook at adding it to the capital budget.

IN FAVOR: Kelly, Kerttula, Moses
OPPCSED: Stoltze, Wyhrauch, Foster, Hawker, Joule, Holm
Meyer, Chenaul t

The MOTI ON FAI LED (3-8).

Representative Kelly MOWED to ADOPT Anendnment DCCED #3,
which would add $210 thousand to Conmunity Assistance and
Econom ¢ Devel opnent, Conmunity Advocacy.

Representative Kelly MOWED to AMEND Anendnent DCCED #3:
change $210 thousand to $150 thousand. He observed that the
appropriation to each Regi onal Seaf ood Devel opnent
Associ ation would be reduced from $70.0 to $50.0. He noted
that the subcommittee added a one-tine increnent to the
Regi onal Seafood Devel opnent Associations (RSDA's). He
enphasi zed that the anmendnment would give the three RSDA s
seed noney.

3:11: 32 PM

Representative Stoltze asked if a local fisheries tax
supported the groups. Representative Kelly affirned.

There being NO OBJECTIQON, it was so ordered.

Representative Mses MNED to ADOPT Anmendnent DCCED
Amendment #4, which would add $1.8 million to the Al aska
Seaf ood Marketing Institute (ASM). Co-Chair Meyer OBJECTED

Representative Mses spoke to the anmendnent. He explained
that the amendnent would allow the Al aska Seafood Marketing
Institute to participate in the industry. The state of
Al aska has not contributed to ASM for approximtely ten
years. He noted that $500 thousand would all ow i nternational
marketing in an attenpt to increase Al aska’s market share in
countries such as Japan and Eastern Europe. He stated that
Al aska spends nmuch | ess than other countries on marketing.

3:14: 26 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 6 03/22/06 2:46 P. M



Representative Mses stressed that the state has a vested
interest in keeping its seafood prices up. He concluded that
the funds were equal to $1 for every $2.5 that the industry
gener at ed.

Representati ve Weyhrauch spoke in support of the amendnent
and reiterated that the state had not contributed to the
Al aska Seafood Marketing Institute in the past 10 years. He
felt a need to support them with the current surplus. He
al so observed that marketing in other countries resulted in
hi gher sales. He observed that there has been approxi mately
a 47 percent increase in sales of Alaskan seafood in
countries where it has been advertised. He acknow edged t hat
additional funds have been put into marketing through
regi onal associ ations.

3:16: 34 PM

Representative Joule also spoke in support of the amendnent
and stressed that Alaska is fortunate to have wild stock
present .

Co-Chair Chenault maintained that the state has invested in
seafood marketing. Wile he acknow edged marketing issues
around the world he argued that a $500 thousand general fund
i ncrease was substanti al

Aroll call vote was taken on the notion.

I N FAVOR: Weyhrauch, Foster, Joule, Kerttula, Moses
OPPCSED: Stoltze, Hawker, Holm Kelly, Chenault, Meyer

Representative Mses W THDREW Amendnment DCCED #5 (copy on
file.)

Representati ve Weyhrauch MOVED to ADOPT Anmendnment ED #1:
Add to Section 13

(b) The sum of $250,000 is appropriated fromthe
general fund to the Departnment of Education and
Early Devel opnent for the fiscal year ending June
30, 2007, for paynment as grants to each school
district that operates a charter school with an
average daily nenbership of | ess than 150 for
support of those charter schools in those
districts. The anpunt appropriated for grants by
this subsection is to be allocated anong eligible
school districts in the proportion that the
average daily menbership of eligible charter
schools in a district bears to the total average
dai ly menbership of all eligible charter schools

House Fi nance Conmmittee 7 03/22/06 2:46 P. M



in all school districts that operate an eligible
charter school

Representative Stoltze OBJECTED

Representative Weyhrauch noted that charter schools had
received state support for the last two years. He explained
that the amendnent allowed funds to go to charter schools
with popul ations of less than 150 students. He stated that
otherwise these small schools were incorporated into the
funding formula for the Jlarger schools, which would
significantly reduce their funding. He stressed the anount
of time already spent by these schools in fundraising. There
are schools in Kenai, None and Juneau. He observed that the
anount was |l ess than they originally requested.

3:22:10 PM

Representative Stoltze expressed his support of charter
school s, and noted their reliance on volunteerism

3:22:59 PM

Representative Hawker questioned if the amendnent would
result in level funding with FY 2006. Representative
Weyhrauch confirned

There being NO OBJECTIQON, it was so ordered.

Representative Kerttula WTHDREW Anendnent #2 (copy on
file.)

Representati ve Weyhrauch MOVED to ADOPT Anendnent ED #3 to
appropriate $49.5 thousand general funds to the Departnment
of Education and Early Developnment, Al aska Library and
Museuns, Archives for program support.

There being NO OBJECTIQON, it was so ordered.

Representative Kerttula MOVED to ADOPT Anmendnent ED #4 to
add $500 thousand to Head Start G ants.

Co- Chair Meyer OBJECTED

Representative Kerttula explained that the anmendnent would
provide enough funding in the Head Start Program to
i ncorporate many of the 850 children on the wait list. She
explained that these children were beneath the poverty
gui del i nes. She proposed that spending this noney woul d have
future benefits and pointed out that the state of Al aska had
not funded preschool program and that the Head Start
program had been flat funded for the past several years. She
noted that all Head Start Gants were conpleted on a

House Fi nance Conmmittee 8 03/22/06 2:46 P. M



conpetitive basis. She noted that the first |ady supported
this program

3:26:38 PM

Co-Chair Chenault noted the decrease of $272 in federal
funds and asked where this occurred.

EDDY JEANS, DI RECTOR, EDUCATI ON SUPPORT SERVI CES, DEPARTMENT
OF EDUCATION AND EARLY  DEVELOPMENT, confirnmed hi s
understanding that the funding for the Head Start Program
would be decreased by $270 thousand by the federa
governnment in the com ng year.

3:27:44 PM

I N FAVOR: Kerttula, Mses, Joule
OPPCSED: Kelly, Stoltze, Wyhrauch, Hawker, Holm Meyer
Chenaul t

Representati ve Foster was absent fromthe vote.
The MOTI ON FAI LED (4-7).

Representative Joule MOVED to ADOPT Anmendnent ED #5 to add
$5 mllion to Teaching and Learning Support for Teacher
Ment or i ng.

Representative Stoltze OBJECTED

Representative Joul e expl ained that the funding would
support the teacher nentoring program He discussed the
origin of the program and enphasized the success of past
teacher nmentoring prograns. He noted that 37 schoo
districts participated in this program and denonstrating
that participation in this voluntary program increased
teacher retention in the state. He observed that teachers
who are initially nentored in rural Al aska m ght eventually
nove to larger districts in the state. He noted the
i nportance of retaining teachers throughout the state and
urged support.

3:31: 28 PM

Co- Chair Meyer noted previous discussions in the Education
Subcomm ttee and noted it had the support of the
Conmi ssi oner of Education. He expl ai ned that the program was
started by the federal governnment. The state nust decide
whether to continue the program He noted the high request
amount pf $5 million and observed that the Anchorage School
District has its own program He noted that the Subcommttee
questioned whether retired teachers mght be a |Iless
expensive option. He noted the subconmttee s disconfort
with the high cost of the program

House Fi nance Conmmittee 9 03/22/06 2:46 P. M



3:33: 05 PM

Co- Chai r Chenaul t acknow edged that the program was
beneficial, but expressed concern with the cost and pointed
out that there are many unresolved issues surrounding
education. He referred to the cost differential problem
which mght be part of the solution. He stated that he was
not confortabl e supporting the anmendnent, but suggested that
it mght be revisited later in the session.

3:34:30 PM

Representative Joule agreed that sonetinmes issues were
rai sed to continue dial ogue on the House Fl oor. He commended
| arger school districts for continued the program but noted
that raising energy costs in smaller districts prevented
nmonies from being directed to other prograns. He conceded
that novenent had been made, but enphasized the inportance
if assisting young teachers early on in the process. He
mai ntai ned that providing assistance to new teachers would
help themto transition and result in greater retention in
Al aska. He wel conmed further discussion.

3:36:31 PM

Representative Kelly acknow edged the <cost of having to
recruit and retain new teachers, but conceded that the
funding |l evel was not sustainable. He nentioned a tinme when
Fairbanks put a great deal of effort into nentoring. He
observed that the state was not producing the anmount of
teachers needed to fill current job openings.

Representative Joule pointed out that it would be nore
difficult to restart the program

Aroll call vote was taken on the notion.

I N FAVOR: Foster, Joule, Kerttula, Mses

OPPOSED: Hawker, Holm Kelly, Stoltze, Whyrauch, Meyer,
Chenaul t

The MOTI ON FAI LED (4-7).

Representative Joule MOVED to ADOPT Anmendnent ED #6 to add

$750 thousand to support the work of Ready to Read, Ready to

Learn Alaska Task Force in the Departnent of Health and

Soci al Servi ces.

Representative Stoltze OBJECTED

3:40: 05 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 10 03/22/06 2:46 P. M



Representative Joul e explained that the anendnent supported
the Ready to Read program He noted that pre K prograns have
been elimnated. He enphasized the inportance of instilling
early reading skills in 3 to 5 year olds, and proposed that
work at this level would result in benefits in the overal
system He stressed that these funds are an investnent in
students in the state of Al aska, which would pay huge
di vidends. He pointed out that studies correlated early
education to a lack of a prison record.

Representati ve Hawker observed that the program started in
the Health and Soci al Services budget. The Subcommittee did
not accept the appropriation and recomended that it be
directed to the Education budget. He conceded that this
program provi ded benefit, but questioned why it had begun in
the Departnent of Health and Social Services budget. He
suggested that it pointed to a famly responsibility. He did
not believe the state had a primary role at this level. He
mentioned that there were a nunber of social services
al ready available to support young children, such as day
care, which is funded at $53 million a year. He was not sure
that the state should support this program

3:45: 53 PM

Co- Chair Meyer conceded that this was a difficult decision
and noted the long discussions in the Education
Subcomm ttee. He observed that the intent of the task force
was to provide these services to all young children in the
state. He pointed out however, that the funding was a
pl acehol der, since the task force was not yet sure how to
spend the noney. He felt the anmendnent would be prenature.
The $750 thousand was nerely for the task force, with the
services portending a nuch | arger anount.

Representative Hawker clarified that the child care benefits
proposal was $48 million vs. $53 nmillion in the Department
of Health and Soci al Servi ces.

Representative Joul e suggested that the task force m ght be
able to identify current state agencies as nethods for
inproving learning for young children. He enphasized the
need for funding to allow the task force to interface with
the current program He noted that his own district
currently chose to make this investnment, even though the
departnment is not supporting the funding. He referred to
studi es that denonstrate that young children benefit a great
deal fromthis type of intervention

3:50: 04 PM

Co- Chai r Chenaul t agreed that earlier intervention in
education is better. However, he noted that it was a policy
guestion whether the state or the fam |y ought to have that

House Fi nance Conmmittee 11 03/22/06 2:46 P. M



responsibility. He conceded that sone famlies mght not
have the ability to provide these resources, but questioned
the role of the state.

3:50: 59 PM

Aroll call vote was taken on the noti on.

IN FAVOR: Joul e, Kerttula, Mses

OPPCSED: Hawker, Holm Kelly, Stoltze, Wyhrauch, Foster
Chenaul t, Meyer

The MOTI ON FAI LED (3-8).

3:51: 51 PM

Representative Kerttula MOVED to ADOPT ED 7:

DEPARTMENT: Departnment of Education
APPROPRI ATI ON: Teachi ng and Lear ni ng Support
ALLOCATI ON: Student and School Achi evenent
ADD: $50.0

FUNDI NG SOURCE: GF code 1004

Co- Chair Chenault OBJECTED

Representative Kerttula explained the anendnent, which
supports a 20 year old program The Alaska M neral and
Energy Resource Education Fund (AMEREF) is a partnership
between the State of Alaska Departnent of Education and
private industry to provide Al aska students and teachers
with the knowl edge and skills to nmake informed and objective
decisions relating to mneral, energy, and forest resources.
The key conponent of the program is the curricul um nodul es
provided to teachers around the state. These nodul es cover
such subjects as Alaska’s Mning Hi story, Alaska s Geol ogy,
Al aska’s Mnerals and M ning, Ecology/Econony, Energy and
the Environnment and Al aska’s Forestry. Funding is needed to

update and revise the curriculum nodules including
incorporating the newly approved state science standards as
well as new technologies. She spoke in support of the

amendnent and stressed its effectiveness. She observed that
there is currently no good outside source.

Co- Chair Chenault did not support the amendnent.
Co-Chair Meyer acknow edged the worth of the program but
observed that the state already contributes $50 thousand

dollars toward the program He hoped to see the mning
industry to take the program over.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 12 03/22/06 2:46 P. M



Representative Kerttula pointed out that the State reduced
fundi ng, which AMEREF picked up. The noney is needed to
update and revise the science curriculum She stated that it
was a worthwhil e program

3: 55: 03 PM

Aroll call vote was taken on the notion.

I N FAVOR: Joul e, Kerttula, Moses

OPPCSED:  Hawker , Kel |y, Stoltze, Weyhr auch, Foster
Chenaul t, Meyer

Representati ve Hol mwas absent fromthe vote.

The MOTI ON FAI LED (3-7).

3:55: 50 PM

Representati ve Weyhrauch MOVED to ADOPT Labor #1:

(d) The sum of $200,000 is appropriated from the
general fund to the Departnent of Labor and Workforce
Devel opnent, independent 1living rehabilitation, for
partial funding of interpreter referral |I|ine and
transition of youth to enploynent, for the fiscal year
endi ng June 30, 2007.

Co- Chair Chenault OBJECTED

Representative Weyhrauch expl ained that the anmendnment woul d
appropriate $200 thousand for the independent |iving
rehabilitation. He enphasized that the funding helps to
keep people in their honmes. It is a one-tine appropriation.

Co- Chai r Chenaul t acknow edged that the program is
wor t hwhi | e.

Representati ve Chenault MOVED to AMEND Anmendnent: reduce the
appropriation to $150 thousand. There being NO OBJECTIQN, it
was anended.

Representati ve Hawker OBJECTED for a comrent. He expressed
the desire to see the services coordinated between the
Departnment of Labor and W rkforce Developnent and the
Department of Health and Social Services.

Represent ati ve Hawker W THDREW hi s OBJECTI ON.
Representative Kelly referred to the nunber of constituents

testifying regarding the budget and pointed out that few if
any testified in favor of further cuts. He thought that the

House Fi nance Conmmittee 13 03/22/06 2:46 P. M



budget was not sustainable. He nmaintained that there are
many equal |y deserving prograns, but indicated that he would
support the anmendnent.

There being NO OBJECTI ON, LABOR #1 was adopt ed.

4:00:48 PM

Representative Kerttula MOVED t o ADOPT Labor #2:

DEPARTMENT: Depart ment of Labor
APPROPRI ATI ON: Wor kf or ce Devel opnent
ALLOCATI ON: Adul t Basi c Education
ADD: $450. 0

FUNDI NG SOURCE: GF code 1004

EXPLANATI ON: This anmendnent wll restore the Adult
Basi ¢ Education Program to the full $1 mllion. Thi s
program prepares Al askans for enploynment by providing
instruction in basic skills and GED preparation and
t esting. The increment will enable the program to
increase their GED graduates by 630 and wll also
provide a trades apprenticeship and job training
curricul um The additional funding is also needed to
mai ntain, nonitor and update the databases and train
t he ABE program staff

Representative Stoltze OBJECTED
4.01: 22 PM

Representative Kerttula stated that the amendnent would
restore the Adult Education Program to the requested limt
of $1 mllion. She referred to testinony indicating the
inportance of the program in allowing people to inprove
their lives. The Adult Basic Education Program issues
certificates to the highest percentage  of Al askans
graduating through any program There are 630 graduates per
year. She reiterated that it would be noney well spent.

Representative Joule noted that he worked at the Al aska
Techni cal Center in Kotzebue and recounted successful use of
the program He urged passage of the anendnent and
mai ntained it was a worthwhil e expense.

4:05:47 PM

ay BELL, ASSI STANT COW SSI ONER, OFFI CE OF THE
COW SSI ONER, DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND WORKFORCE DEVELCOPMENT,
expl ained that the GED programis the single | argest source,
with 20% of high school diplonas.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 14 03/22/06 2:46 P. M



Represent ati ve Hawker was shocked.

Representative Kerttula stated that there was no other
program giving GED's in the State. Co-Chair Chenault stated
this was in addition to what was requested.

4:08: 22 PM

Aroll call vote was taken on the notion.

I N FAVOR: Joul e, Kerttula, Moses
OPPOSED: Hawker, Holm Kelly, Stoltze, Foster, Chenault,

Vi ce-Chair Meyer and Representative Wyhrauch were absent
fromthe vote.

The MOTI ON FAI LED ( 3-6).
4:09:14 PM

Representative Kerttula MOVED t o ADOPT Labor #3:

DEPARTMENT: Departnment of Labor
APPROPRI ATI ON: Wor kers’ Conpensati on and Safety
ALLOCATI ON: Wage and Hour Admi ni stration
ADD: $199.5

FUNDI NG SOURCE: GF code 1004

EXPLANATI ON: This anmendnment will restore funding to
the $299.2 level requested by Departnent of Labor to
establish three new Wage and Hour Investigator |
positions to inprove resident hire results and ensure
compliance with ©prevailing wage |[aws. Publ i c
construction projects have increased by 23% since FY
2003 and existing staff is insufficient to perform on-
site inspections. These positions will result in an
additional 800 on-site inspections annually.

Representative Stoltze OBJECTED

Representative Kerttula spoke to t he amendnent . She
explained that the anendnent would restore the |evel
requested by the Departnent of Labor and Workforce
Devel opnent . She observed support from the GCeneral
Contractors Association and nenbers of the public. She
observed that with the increase in public construction
progranms, the existing staff in the Departnment of Labor was

unable to get to job sites to do proper inspections. The
amendnment would allow 800 nore inspections per year. The
state of Alaska has a prevailing wage |aw.  Wthout
enforcenment sonme contractors may msclassify workers to
| oner paying crafts with little threat of being caught. The

House Fi nance Conmmittee 15 03/22/06 2:46 P. M



amendnent woul d help level the playing field. She maintained
that without the funding sone contractors would not follow
et hi cal work practi ces.

4:11: 01 PM

Co-Chair Chenault conceded that the anmount was not as nuch
as requested, but felt that it mght be enough to suffice
for now

Representative Hol m asked whether there were any cases that
rai sed suspi ci on about contractors not conpl yi ng.
Representati ve Weyhrauch said that although they had not
heard any testinony, the presence of the program preventing
poor practices.

Representati ve Hawker agreed that the state needed to pay

attention to current laws in this area. He endorsed the
amendnent .

Representative Kelly noted the increase and proposed that a
great deal of enforcenent already occurred in the workpl ace.

Representative Kerttula pointed out that testinony reveal ed

that only 160 projects were surveyed, and inspectors were

overwhel med. She noted testinony estimating that 800

proj ects need auditing.

Representati ve Chenault spoke agai nst the amendnent.

Aroll call vote was taken on the notion.

I N FAVOR: Joul e, Kerttula, Hawker

OPPCSED: Holm Kelly, Stoltze, Wyhrauch, Foster, Chenault,
Meyer

Representati ve Moses was absent fromthe vote.

The MOTI ON FAI LED (3-7).

Representative Kelly MOVED to ADOPT Amendnent Labor #4 to

add $47.9 thousand |Independent Living Rehabilitation for

Assisted Living Care for the Elderly and Blind.

There being NO OBJECTIQON, it was so ordered.

Co-Chair Chenault MOVED to ADOPT Anendnent Labor #5 to add

$50. 0 thousand general funds for an office of Citizenship

Assi stance activities in the Kodi ak offi ce.

Representative Stoltze OBJECTED

Co- Chair Chenault noted that the anendnent generated from a
Conmttee nenber, and stated that Kodiak had a |arge

House Fi nance Conmmittee 16 03/22/06 2:46 P. M



Filipino population and believed they needed a position of
Citizen Assistance.

Representative Stoltze WTHDREW objection. There being NO
OBJECTION, it was so ordered.

Co-Chair Chenault MOVED to ADOPT Anendnent LAW #1:

* Sec. 15. DEPARTMENT OF LAW The sum of $1,500,000 is
from the general fund to the Departnent of Law, oil,
gas, and mning, for work related to the state gas
pipeline, to bringing North Slope natural gas to
market, and to other oil and gas projects, for the
fiscal year ending June 30, 2007.

Representative Stoltze OBJECTED.
4:17:27 PM

Co- Chair Chenault observed that the anendnent woul d provide
$1.5 mllion for related oil and gas projects. The nonies
were split between the FY 06 and 07 budgets. He pointed out
that the FY 07 funding was taken out of the supplenental and
added to the FY 07 operating budget. He observed that a
| arge anount of nobney has been spent over the last few years
for pipeline and other negotiations and noted concerns
regardi ng accounting for those expenditures. He had been
reassured that the funding was spent in the correct nanner.
He concluded that at this tine, with the PPT tax before the
Legi slature, the noney nust be invested. He stated that
al t hough he was reluctant to spend the noney, he believed it
was necessary.

Representative Stoltze expressed support for funding civil
| awyers. He noted the amount of outstanding tax cases, and
the cost of contracted attorneys. He conmended the
dedi cation of attorneys working for the departnment. He al so
noted that the intention was not to hire too many attorneys
out of Washi ngton D.C.

4:20: 03 PM

Represent ati ve Hawker W THDREW hi s OBJECTI ON. There bei ng NO
OBJECTION, it was so ordered.

Representative Stoltze MOVED to ADOPT Anmendnent LAW #2,
which would add $141.8 thousand in general funds for the
Third Judicial District, Anchorage to restore a therapeutic
courts attorney.

There being NO OBJECTION, it was so ordered.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 17 03/22/06 2:46 P. M



Co-Chair Chenault MOVED to ADOPT Amendnent DWA #1 to add
$150 t housand for Honel and Security Energency Servi ces.

There being NO OBJECTIQON, it was so ordered.

Representative Hol m MOVED t o ADOPT Amendnent DOTPF #1 to add
$1.5 mllion Northern Region H ghways and Aviation for
i ncreased Dal ton H ghway nmai nt enance and operati ons.

There being NO OBJECTIQON, it was so ordered.

4:22:10 PM

Representati ve Mises MOED to ADOPT Amendnent DOTPF #2 to
add $543.8 thousand for five positions and to extend the
hours of operation at Kodiak, Dillingham Unal aska, None,
Kot zebue, Wangell and Petersburg.

i?epr esentative Stoltze OBJECTED.

FRANK Rl CHARDS, STATEW DE  MAI NTENANCE AND  OPERATI ONS,
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATI ON AND PUBLI C FACI LI TIES, spoke to
t he anendnent. He explained that the amendnment would all ow
extended hours in rural certificated airports, where air
carriers would |ike better service on the runway for snow
and ice renoval. The additional service would affect both
passenger and cargo flights. He explained that mssed
approaches result in returns to Anchorage, which prevents
food stuffs and nedical evacuation staff from arriving. He

observed support in rural areas. He noted that the
| egi sl ature approved 75% of their FY 06 request on six of
the airports: Pet er sbur g, None, Bet hel , Kot zebue and

DI lingham The amendnent woul d expand service to Kodi ak and
Unal aska.

Aroll call vote was taken on the noti on.

I N FAVOR: Mbses, Foster, Joule, Kerttula

OPPCSED: Stoltze, Wyhrauch, Hawker, Holm Kelly, Meyer,
Chenaul t

The MOTI ON FAI LED (4-7).

Representative Joule W THDREW Anmendnment DOTPF #3 (copy on
file.)

Representative Kerttula MOVED Anendnment #4, DOTPF, which
woul d add $2,355.8 nillion for Al aska Marine H ghway System
Vessel Operations.

Co- Chair Chenault OBJECTED.

Representative Kerttula explained that the anmendment would
restore the reduction of additional weeks of service for the

House Fi nance Conmmittee 18 03/22/06 2:46 P. M



cross gulf service between Juneau and Wiittier from October
to June 30, 2006 on the MV Kennicott. She observed that
many travel ers depend on the service, including |egislators,
mlitary and other state enpl oyees.

NANCY SLAGLE, DI RECTOR, DI VI SI ON OF ADM NI STRATI VE SERVI CES,
DEPARTMVENT OF TRANSPORTATI ON AND PUBLI C FACI LI TIES, observed
that the anmendnment would restore funding reduced by the
Subconmi ttee as an unal | ocated reducti on.

4:26:48 PM

Co- Chai r Chenaul t observed t hat t here are concerns
regarding fast ferry service and other issues with the
Al aska Marine H ghway System He expressed a hesitance to
add support at this tine.

Aroll call vote was taken on the notion.

I N FAVOR: Moses, Joule, Kerttula
OPPCSED: Stoltze, Wyhrauch, Foster, Hawker, Holm Kelly,
Meyer, Chenaul t

The MOTI ON FAI LED (3-8).

HB 365 and HB 366 were heard and HELD in Commttee for
further consideration.

#

ADJ QURNVENT

The neeting was adjourned at 4:29 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 19 03/22/06 2:46 P. M



